Choose Columbia

Columbia Economic Development Corporation

COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

NOTICE OF MEETING

Please take notice that there will be a meeting of the Columbia Economic Development Corporation Audit and
Finance Committee held on March 24, 2021 at 8:30am, for the purpose of discussing any matters that may be
presented to the Committee for consideration. Due to public health and safety concerns related to COVID-19,
the meeting will not take place in-person. In accordance with the Governor’s Executive Order 202.1, meeting
will be held via Zoom

https://zoom.us/j/916629035222pwd=Y UxwamlIsN2NkbkSIOEFUTm9BWmdVZz09

Meeting ID: 916 6290 3522; Passcode: 547135, Dial 1 646 558 8656 Meeting ID: 916 6290 3522

Passcode: 547135. The public will have an opportunity to hear the meeting live and provide comments.
Comments can also be provided via email before and during the meeting to mtucker@columbiaedc.com.
Please check the meeting Agenda posted on the CEDC’s website www.columbiaedc.com for further
instructions to access the virtual meeting and for updated information.

Dated: March 17, 2021
Sarah Sterling, Secretary,Columbia Economic Development Corporation

CEDC Audit and Finance Committee
Agenda
Chairman:
John Lee
Members:
David Fingar
Tish Finnegan
James Lapenn

1. Minutes, January 13, 2021*
2. Treasurer’s Report*
3. Audited Financial Statements and Required Communications*
4. Statement of Internal Controls*
5. 2020 Investment Report*
6. Portfolio Report*
7. Committee Evaluation*
8. Public Comment
Attachments:

Minutes, January 13, 2021

Treasurer’s Report

Audited Financial Statements and Required Communications
Portfolio Report

Statement of Internal Controls

2020 Investment Report

* Requires action

One Hudson City Centre, Suite 301, Hudson, NY 12534 | 518.828.4718 |
www.columbiaedc.com



Choose Columbia

Columbia Economic Development Corporation

MINUTES
COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
AUDIT and FINANCE COMMITTEE
Wednesday, January 13, 2021
Via Zoom due to COVID-19,

A regularly scheduled meeting of Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s (CEDC) Audit and
Finance Committee was via Zoom due to the COVID-19 outbreak, on January 13, 2021. The meeting was
called to order at 8:30am by Mr. Lee, Chair.

Attendee Name Title Status Departed
David Fingar Committee Member Present via Zoom
Tish Finnegan Committee Member Present via Zoom
James Lapenn Committee Member Present via Zoom
John Lee Committee Member Present via Zoom
Seth Rapport Committee Member Present via Zoom
F. Michael Tucker President/CEO Present via Zoom
Andy Howard Counsel Present via Zoom
Lauren Cranna Business Development Partner Present via Zoom
Lisa Drahushuk Administrative Supervisor Present via Zoom
Martha Lane Business Development Director Present via Zoom
Erin McNary Bookkeeper Present via Zoom
Ileana Morales Marketing Specialist Present via Zoom
Carol Wilber Marketing Director Present via Zoom

Minutes:

My. Fingar made a motion, seconded by Mr. Lapenn to approve the December 8, 2020 minutes as presented.

Carried.

Treasurer’s Report:

Mr. Tucker reviewed the Treasurer’s Report and Balance Sheet. Mr. Lapenn noted a mistake on the banking
relationship sheet. Mr. Tucker stated it would be corrected. Mr. Fingar made a motion, seconded by Mr.
Lapenn to recommend the Treasurer’s Report to the full Board with the one correction outlined by Mr.
Lapenn.

Portfolio Report:

Ms. Lane stated the report shows all current. Mr. Tucker and Ms. Lane discussed the SBA announcement
of an additional deferral. They felt CEDC should extend a deferral to those CEDC loan clients who request
one. Ms. Finnegan made a motion, seconded by Mr. Lapenn to recommend the report to the full Board.
Carried.

One Hudson City Centre, Suite 301, Hudson, NY 12534 | 518.828.4718
www.columbiaedc.com



Choose Columbia

Columbia Economic Development Corporation

2020 Audit and Finance Committee Discharged Duties.

Mr. Fingar made a motion, seconded by Mr. Lapenn to approve the 2020 Discharged Duties report.
Carried.

Audit and Finance Committee Charter:

Mr. Lapenn suggested that an addition be made to the Charter under purpose, stating the Committee reviews
and monitors the operating budget. Mr. Lapenn made a motion, seconded by Mr. Fingar to approve the
charter with the suggested change. Carried.

Other Business:

Mr. Tucker stated he and UHY was determining if CEDC would be eligible to apply for the next round of
PPP. He suggested if it was determined that CEDC met the criteria, he submit an application for the funds.
He noted the paperwork for the first loan forgiveness had been submitted, but no determination has yet been
received.

With no other business to come before the committee and no public comment, Mr. Fingar made a motion,
seconded by Ms. Finnegan to adjourn the meeting. Carried.

The meeting adjourned at 9:01am

Respectfully submitted by Lisa Drahushuk

One Hudson City Centre, Suite 301, Hudson, NY 12534 | 518.828.4718
www.columbiaedc.com



Fiad o Columbia Economic Development Corp

03/15/21
Accrual Basis Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison
As of February 28, 2021
Feb 28, 21 Feb 29, 20 $ Change % Change
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
Checking and Savings
Operating Bank Accounts
1000-00 - Checking -Key Bank 14,586.86 55,512.06 -40,925.20 -73.72%
1000-05 - Cash, TD Bank Checking 0.00 821.48 -821.48 -100.0%
1021-00 - Key Bank - Gold MM Savings 253,361.42 266,028.83 -12,667.41 -4.76%
1032.00 - Berkshire Bank 153,439.09 151,028.98 2,410.11 1.6%
1001-00 - Key - PPP/EIDL Account 3,407.54 0.00 3,407.54 100.0%
Total Operating Bank Accounts 424,794.91 473,391.35 -48,596.44 -10.27%
Loan SBA Cash Accounts
1100-01 - SBA Key - RLF #3 52,678.22 73,847.17 -21,168.95 -28.67%
1100-02 - SBA Key - RLF #4 17,498.16 55,745.13 -38,246.97 -68.61%
1100-03 - SBA Bank of Greene Cty - RLF #5 50,004.95 75,738.10 -25,733.15 -33.98%
1100-07 - SBA Bank of Greene Cty - RLF #6 71,795.47 45,927.62 25,867.85 56.32%
1100-10 - SBA Key - RLF #7 42,156.46 100.00 42,056.46 42,056.46%
1100-11 - SBA Key - RLF #8 75,000.00 0.00 75,000.00 100.0%
Total Loan SBA Cash Accounts 309,133.26 251,358.02 57,775.24 22.99%
Loan CEDC Cash Accounts
1000-02 - Loan Community Ckg 648 23,640.89 34,303.80 -10,662.91 -31.08%
1020-01 - 1003-Community Svgs DM SC 747,306.60 696,550.54 50,756.06 7.29%
Total Loan CEDC Cash Accounts 770,947.49 730,854.34 40,093.15 5.49%
Grants Cash Accounts
Key - BTCF County Grant 13,414.47 0.00 13,414.47 100.0%
Total Grants Cash Accounts 13,414 .47 0.00 13,414 .47 100.0%
Reserve SBA Cash Accounts
1100-04 - Key Bank - LLR #3 21,090.37 21,085.71 4.66 0.02%
1100-05 - Key Bank - LLR #4 13,051.46 13,048.57 2.89 0.02%
1100-06 - Bank of Greene County - LLR #5 40,056.65 39,963.68 92.97 0.23%
1100-08 - Bank of Greene County - LLR #6 42,075.84 41,978.17 97.67 0.23%
1100-09 - Key Bank - LLR #7 37,600.00 100.00 37,500.00 37,500.0%
1100-12 - Key Bank - LLR #8 22,500.00 0.00 22,500.00 100.0%
Total Reserve SBA Cash Accounts 176,374.32 116,176.13 60,198.19 51.82%
Reserve CEDC Cash Accounts
1031-00 - BOGC - Reserve 213,068.62 212,574.06 494.56 0.23%
Total Reserve CEDC Cash Accounts 213,068.62 212,574.06 494.56 0.23%
1032-00 - Hudson Bonds Accounts
Key Bank - Hudson Bonds 11,111.00 0.00 11,111.00 100.0%
Key Bank - Hudosn Bonds Awards 14,233.00 0.00 14,233.00 100.0%
Total 1032-00 - Hudson Bonds Accounts 25,344.00 0.00 25,344.00 100.0%
Total Checking and Savings 1,933,077.07 1,784,353.90 148,723.17 8.34%
Total Checking/Savings 1,933,077.07 1,784,353.90 148,723.17 8.34%
Other Current Assets
Accounts Receivable 108,240.80 198,485.99 -90,245.19 -45.47%
1251-15 - Prepaid expense 0.00 1,804.50 -1,804.50 -100.0%
Loans Receivable 619,069.02 402,445.69 216,623.33 53.83%
CEDC - Loan Funds 961,897.64 986,938.31 -25,040.67 -2.54%
Total Other Current Assets 1,689,207.46 1,589,674.49 99,5632.97 6.26%
Total Current Assets 3,622,284.53 3,374,028.39 248,256.14 7.36%
Fixed Assets
Property & Capitalized Assets 14,340.83 13,532.83 808.00 5.97%

Page 1 of 2



10:01 AM
03/15/21

Columbia Economic Development Corp

Accrual Basis Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison

Total Fixed Assets

Other Assets
Comm. Pk Land Sale Recv.
Grants Receivable
Allowance for Bad Debt Loans
2300 - Security Deposit

Total Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2000-01 - *Accounts Payable
Total Accounts Payable
Other Current Liabilities
HBC Liability
Accrued Expenses
2009 - Loan payable - PPP
Deferred Revenue
Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities
2010 - Loan payable - EIDL
Loans Payable to SBA
Debt Reserve
Long term Deferrd Revenue
Total Long Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity
Invested in Capital Assets
Net assets Restricted
Unrestricted Net Position
Net Income

Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

As of February 28, 2021

Feb 28, 21 Feb 29, 20 $ Change % Change

14,340.83 13,5632.83 808.00 5.97%
19,409.30 19,409.30 0.00 0.0%
226,343.24 227,051.84 -708.60 -0.31%
-232,015.32 -142,017.11 -89,998.21 -63.37%
3,200.00 3,200.00 0.00 0.0%
16,937.22 107,644.03 -90,706.81 -84.27%
3,653,562.58 3,495,205.25 158,357.33 4.53%
12,468.75 12,585.91 -117.16 -0.93%
12,468.75 12,585.91 -117.16 -0.93%
25,344.00 0.00 25,344.00 100.0%
7,901.92 7,598.16 303.76 4.0%
68,700.00 0.00 68,700.00 100.0%
5,237.00 0.00 5,237.00 100.0%
107,182.92 7,598.16 99,584.76 1,310.64%
119,651.67 20,184.07 99,467.60 492.8%
100,000.00 0.00 100,000.00 100.0%
703,711.53 438,856.03 264,855.50 60.35%
10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.0%
26,343.24 27,051.84 -708.60 -2.62%
840,054.77 475,907.87 364,146.90 76.52%
959,706.44 496,091.94 463,614.50 93.45%
14,340.83 13,532.83 808.00 5.97%
397,708.51 397,708.51 0.00 0.0%
2,305,039.74 2,583,157.71 -278,117.97 -10.77%
-23,232.94 4,714.26 -27,947.20 -592.82%
2,693,856.14 2,999,113.31 -305,257.17 -10.18%

3,653,562.58 3,495,205.25 158,357.33 4.53%

Page 2 of 2



10:05 AM
03115121

Accrual Basis

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income
Administrative Revenue
Columbia County
Grant Income
Membership/Sponsorship
5900 - Interest Income
Other Income
Recovery of Bad Debt
SBA Microloan T/A

Total Income

Gross Profit

Expense
Grants Expense*
Conferences and Training
Consulting -TSI
Consulting Fees
Facility
Insurance
SBA Interest Expense
MicroBiz Expenses
New Intiatives

5200 - New Initiatives

5200-A - Workforce & Education

New Intiatives - Other
Total New Intiatives

Office Expense

5060-01 - Comp./Equip & Leasing & Maint.
5060-02 - Telephone & Fax

5060-03 - Internet

5060-04 - Office Supplies & Printing
5060-05 - Dues & Subscriptions

5060-06 - Postage
5060-08 - Web Site
Total Office Expense
Other Expenses
Employer Expenses
Professional Fees
Public Relations/Marketing
Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income
Net Income

Columbia Economic Development Corp

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

January through February 2021

Jan - Feb 21 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
5,666.67 5,666.66 0.01 100.0%
61,333.32 61,333.32 0.00 100.0%
843.86
28,842.00 32,500.00 -3,658.00 88.75%
12,355.01 10,000.00 2,355.01 123.55%
312.47 2,007.37 -1,694.90 15.57%
0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%
19,166.66 19,166.68 -0.02 100.0%
128,519.99 132,674.03 -4,154.04 96.87%
128,519.99 132,674.03 -4,154.04 96.87%
2,000.00
859.00 333.32 525.68 257.71%
22,000.00 22,084.00 -84.00 99.62%
3,183.72 5,000.00 -1,816.28 63.67%
6,560.00 6,560.00 0.00 100.0%
2,886.45 4,500.00 -1,613.55 64.14%
20.13
6,487.00 5,283.32 1,203.68 122.78%
9,000.00
5,000.00
0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%
14,000.00 5,000.00 9,000.00 280.0%
6,197.75 3,000.00 3,197.75 206.59%
931.82 750.00 181.82 124.24%
198.76 233.32 -34.56 85.19%
326.96 1,666.68 -1,339.72 19.62%
5,847.50 4,500.00 1,347.50 129.94%
300.00 100.00 200.00 300.0%
1,340.00 833.32 506.68 160.8%
15,142.79 11,083.32 4,059.47 136.63%
3,076.64 2,000.00 1,076.64 153.83%
68,506.50 68,750.10 -243.60 99.65%
1,631.00 5,999.96 -4,368.96 27.18%
5,399.70 3,000.00 2,399.70 179.99%
151,752.93 139,594.02 12,158.91 108.71%
-23,232.94 -6,919.99 -16,312.95 335.74%
-23,232.94 -6,919.99 -16,312.95 335.74%

Page 1 of 1



| Jo | abedq

$6°2€2'€2- 20'L2 98'cr8 60'7£6°9 vl 18'659 19'2.2°) 78'221°T 29'80t°L £9'L6V'9¢- awodu| 38N
¥6°2ez'cC- 201z og'eys 60°vE6°9 Vil 18'659 19212} z8'zel'e Z9'80t'L £9'/6'9¢- awoou| AreuipiQ joN
€6'26L 161 00°0 000 00°05} 000 €102 000 000 000 08'285'1G) asuadxg |ejo]
0,'66€'S 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 0L'66E'S Bunasiep/suone|ay angnd
00°1€9°} 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 00'1£9'} S99 [euolssejo.d
05°905'89 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 05°'905'89 sasuadxg safojdw3z
¥9'9.0'¢ 000 000 00°0S} 000 000 000 000 000 ¥9'926'C sesuadx3 19430
6LZrL'S) 00°0 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 6L2ZPL'S) asuadx3 221140
00°000'%} 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 - 00°000'7} S9AjeIju] MON
00°/8%'9 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 00°.8%'9 sasuadx3 z1goIoIN
€1°0C 000 000 000 000 €102 000 000 000 000 asuadxd jseiaju] yES
ay'988'z 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 S¥'988'C aoueInsuy|
00°095'9 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000959 Ayoey
zlesl's 00°0 000 000 000 000 000 00°0 000 zresl's s994 Burynsuog
00°000°22 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 00°000'22 IS1- Buninsuo
00°658 00°0 000 00°0 000 000 000 000 000 00'658 Bujures) pue seoualsjuo)
00°000°C 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 00°000'2 ~osuadx3 sjuets
asuadx3
66'615'8Z1 20z 98'Er8 60°%80'L VL) 00089 192121 z8'zel'e Z9'80v'L L1'G80'GLL
66'615'8Z1 z0le 98'er8 80780, 7 00089 192LT') 4N AANA z9'80%'L 11°680'SLL awoouj [ejo]
99'991'6) 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 99991 '61 V/L UeojoIdIN VES
yzie z0°le 000 lessl Vi) ¥5°0 ev'Ll S6°Gl 000 zs9. awodu| 18Yy30
10's5E'C) 000 000 28'868'9 000 or'6.9 ¥ZL9Z') 18901 z9'80t') 000 awodu| }salelu] - 0065
00'2¥8'82 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 00'¢y8'9C diysiosuodsy/diysiaquajy
98'ev8 000 98'eY8 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 awoou| juel
ze'eee'lo 00°0 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 zZeeee'lo funog eiquinjoy
19'999'G 000 000 00°0 000 000 000 000 000 19'999'G anuaAsy aAneISIuIWPY
WO

asuadxg/ewoosu| Aeulpio

IvLloL veas v lelol (pund 9gao ¢) pungj ueoT g €0dTHVES  P0-dTdVES S0-dTIVAS 904 vES L0-d4T™ vES Bugetado |

Z0-vera3Lez 99ad Loz Kisrigey) yBroa Renuep

sse|) Aq ssoT B Jjold siseg [eniooy

L2isL/Ie0
diog juswdojarag 21WIOUODT BIGUWINOD : NV 60:01



|

Statement of the Effectiveness of Internal Control )

This Statement of the Effectiveness of Internal Controls was adopted by the Board of Directors
of the Columbia Economic Development Corporation, (the “Corporation™), a public benefit
corporation established under the laws of the State of New York, on this the __* day of _, 2021.

Purpose

To satisfy the requirement of Section 2800 (1)(a)(9) and Section 2800 (2)(a)(9) of Public
Authorities Law, the Corporation has prepared the following statement:

Statement of the Effectiveness of Internal Controls

This statement certifies that the Columbia Economic Development Corporation followed a
process that assessed and documented the adequacy of its internal control structure and policies
for the year ending December 31, 2020.

To the extent that deficiencies were identified, the Corporation has developed corrective action
plans to reduce any corresponding risk.



COLUMBIA ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
2020 Investment Report

In accordance with Section 2925 of the Public Authorities Law; Sections 10, 11 and 858-
a of General Municipal Law, the Columbia Economic Development Corporation has
prepared an annual Investment Report for 2020.

The Columbia Economic Development Corporation Investment Policy was originally
approved on February 5, 2015, with the latest revision made on October 29, 2019.

The Policy was amended on October 29, 2019. Section VI was corrected to reflect the
name changes of the Authorized Depositories. No other amendments were made since
the policy was reviewed and re-adopted on January 28, 2020.

The amended Investment Policy has been attached to this document as Schedule A.

The 2020 Annual Financial Audit is attached as Schedule B.

The Corporation generated $20,355.37 in interest income for the period January 1, 2020 —
December 31, 2020.

Bank Name Amount Generated Fees
Community Bank $4,828.00 $ 940.00
Key Bank $1,899.00 $1,394.00
TD Bank $0.00 $0.00
The Bank of Greene County $715.00 $36.00

Berkshire Bank $2,410.00 $0.00



Schedule A

COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

IL.

1L

IV.

INVESTMENT POLICY
Scope

This investment policy applies to all moneys and other financial resources available for
investment by the Columbia Economic Development Corporation (the “Corporation™).

Objectives

The primary objectives of the Corporation’s investment activities are, in priority order.
To conform with all applicable federal, state and other legal requirements;

To adequately safeguard principal;

To provide sufficient liquidity to meet all operating requirements; and
To obtain a reasonable rate of return.

Delegation of Authority

The responsibility for administration of the investment program is delegated to the
President/CEO who shall establish procedures, subject to Board approval, for the
operation of the investment program consistent with these investment guidelines. Such
procedures shall include an adequate internal control structure to provide a satisfactory
level of accountability based on a database or records incorporating description and
amounts of investments, transaction dates, and other relevant information.

Prudence

All participants in the investment process shall seek to act responsibly as custodians of
the public trust and shall avoid any transaction that might impair public confidence in the
Corporation.

Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing,
which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of
their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the safety of the
principal as well as the probable income to be derived.

Consistent with CEDC’s Contflict of Interest policy, all participants involved in the
investment process shall refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with
proper execution of the investment program, or which could impair their ability to make
impartial investment decisions.

Diversification
It is the policy of the Corporation to diversify its deposits and investments by financial

institution such that the Corporation’s deposits and investments do not exceed FDIC
coverage and collateral pledged by such institution.



VL

VIL

VIIL

IX.

Internal Controls

It is the policy of the Corporation that all moneys collected by any officer or employee of
the Corporation be transferred to the President/CEO or his designee within 5 days of
receipt for deposit into the Corporation’s account.

The President/CEO is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that deposits and investments
are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, that transactions are
executed in accordance with management’s authorization and recorded properly, and are
managed in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Designation of Authorized Depositories

The banks and trust companies authorized for the deposit of monies,:

Depository
Community Bank formerly Kinderhook Bank

Key Bank formerly First Niagara Bank
TD Bank

The Bank of Greene County

Berkshire Bank

Collateralizing of Deposits

In accordance with the provisions of General Municipal Law, §10, all deposits of the
Corporation, including certificates of deposit and special time deposits, in excess of the
amount insured under the provisions of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act shall be
secured by a pledge of “eligible securities” with an aggregate market value, as provided
by General Municipal Law, §10, equal to the aggregate amount of such deposits (a list of
eligible collateral securities are included as Appendix A to this policy).

Safekeeping and Collateralization

Eligible securities used for collateralizing deposits shall be held by the depositaries trust
department and/or a third party bank or trust company subject to security and custodial
agreements.

The security agreement shall provide that eligible securities are being pledged to secure
local government deposits together with agreed upon interest, if any and any costs or
expenses arising out of the collection of such deposits upon default. It shall also provide
the conditions under which the securities may be sold, presented for payment, substituted
or released and the events, which enable the Corporation to exercise its rights against the
pledged securities. In the event that the securities are not registered or inscribed in the
name of the local government, such securities shall be delivered in a form suitable for
transfer or with an assignment in blank to the Corporation or its custodial bank.

The custodial agreement shall provide securities held by the bank or trust company, or
agent of and custodian for, the local government, will be kept separate and apart from the
general assets of the custodial bank or trust company and will not, in any circumstances,
be commingled with or become part of the backing for any other deposit or other



liabilities. The agreement should also describe that the custodian shall confirm the
receipt, substitution or release of the securities. The agreement shall provide for the
frequency of revaluation of eligible securities and for the substitution of securities when a
change in the rating of a security may cause ineligibility. Such agreement shall include
all provisions necessary to provide the local government a perfected interest in the
securities.

X. Authorized Investments

As authorized by General Municipal Law, §11, the Agency authorizes the President/CEO
to invest moneys not required for immediate expenditure for terms not to exceed its
projected cash flow needs in the following types of investments:

Special time deposit accounts;

Certificates of deposit;

Obligations of the United States of America;

Obligations guaranteed by agencies of the United States of America where the
payment of principal and interest are guaranteed by the United States of America;
e Obligations of the State of New York

e Money market/savings

All investment obligations shall be payable or redeemable at the option of the
Corporation within such times as the proceeds will be needed to meet expenditures for
purposes for which the moneys were provided and, in the case of obligations purchased
with the proceeds of bonds or notes, shall be payable or redeemable at the option of the
Corporation within one year of the date of purchase.

XI. Quarterly Reporting Requirements

Each quarter, at the regularly scheduled monthly meeting of the Corporation’s Board of
Trustees, the Treasurer shall prepare a report of the Corporation’s cash and investment
balances as of the last day of the preceding month or a later date, if available. At a
minimum such report shall contain:

e The name of each financial institution

e Type of account (checking, savings, certificate of deposit, etc.)
e Current rate of interest

e Account balance as of the last day of the previous month

THIS POLICY SHALL BE REVIEWED AND ADOPTED ANNUALLY.

Reviewed and approved with changes October 29,2019



APPENDIX A

Schedule of securities eligible for collateralization of Corporation deposits:

I

II.

II1.

V.

VL

VIL

VIIL

IX.

Obligations issued, or fully insured or guaranteed as to the payment of principal and
interest, by the United States of America, an agency thereof or a United States
government sponsored corporation.

Obligations partially insured or guaranteed by any agency of the United States of
America, at a proportion of the Market Value of the obligation that represents the amount
of the insurance or guaranty.

Obligations issued or fully insured or guaranteed by the State of New York, obligations
issued by a Municipal Corporation, school district or District Corporation of such State or
obligations of any public benefit corporation that under a specific State statue may be
accepted as security for deposit of public moneys.

Obligations issued by states (other than the State of New York) of the United States rated
in one of the three highest rating categories by at least one nationally recognized
statistical rating organization.

Obligations of Puerto Rico rated in one of the three highest rating categories by at least
one nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

Obligations of counties, cities and other governmental entities of a state other than the
State of New York having the power to levy taxes that are backed by the full faith and
credit of such governmental entity and rated in one of the three highest rating categories
by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

Obligations of domestic corporations rated in one of the two highest rating categories by
at least one nationally statistical rating organization.

Any moftgage related securities, as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, which may be purchased by banks under the limitations established by bank
regulatory agencies.

Commercial paper and bankers’ acceptances issued by a bank, other than the Bank, rated
in the highest short term category by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating
organization and having maturities of not longer than 60 days from the date they are
pledged.

Zero coupon obligations of the United States government marketed as “Treasury Strips”.



Schedule B

2020 Audit



COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(a component unit of the County of Columbia, New York)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2020
(with memorandum totals for the year ended December 31, 2019)



COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditor’s Report
Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Change in Net Position
Statement of Cash Flows
Notes to Financial Statements

Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

Page

- O 00N

22



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Chairman and Board of
Columbia Economic Development Corporation:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Columbia Economic Development
Corporation (a not-for-profit component unit of the County of Columbia, New York) (the
“Corporation”), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s management-is responsible for the preparation and
fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whetherdue to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the Columbia Economic Development Corporation as of December
31, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.



Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 to 6 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March __,
2021 on our consideration of Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited  Columbia Economic Development Corporation’'s 2019 financial
statements, and we expressed an unmadified opinion on those audited financial statements in our
report dated March 31, 2020. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented
herein as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019 is consistent, in all material respects, with
the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Hudson, New York
March __, 2021

Page 2



COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

December 31, 2020

Introduction:

Within this section of the Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s (the “Corporation”)
financial statements, the Corporation’s management provides narrative discussion and analysis of
the financial activities of the not-for profit Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2020. This
discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Corporation's basic financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Overview of the Financial Statements:

The Corporation’s basic financial statements include: (1) financial statements, and (2) notes to the
financial statements.

Financial Statements:

The Corporation’s financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB). The Corporation is structured as a single enterprise fund with revenues recognized
when earned, not when received. Expenses are recognized when incurred, not when they are paid.
Capital assets are capitalized and are depreciated over their useful lives. See notes to the financial
statements for a summary of the Corporation’s significant accounting policies.

The Statement of Net Position presents information.on the Corporation’s assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of the Corporation’s financial position.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position presents information showing
how the Corporation’s net position changed during the most recent year. All changes in net position
are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in these statements for
some items that will result in cash flows in future periods.

The Statement of Cash Flows relates to the flows of cash and cash equivalents. Consequently, only
transactions that affect the Corporation’s cash accounts are recorded in this statement. A
reconciliation is provided at the bottom of the statement of cash flows to assist in the understanding
of the difference between cash flows from operating activities and operating income.

Notes to Financial Statements:

The accompanying notes to the financial statements provide information essential to a full
understanding of the basic financial statements.

Financial Highlights:
During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Corporation was able to assist Columbia County
businesses through its loan programs as well as certain fiscal agent and fiscal sponsorship

arrangements (see note 14). The fiscal agent and fiscal sponsorships were created in an effort to
help businesses during the COVID 19 pandemic.

Page 3



COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

December 31, 2020

Financial Highlights (Continued):

Net position decreased $277,316 during the year ended December 31, 2020. Operating revenues
increased $190,711 or 63%, primarily due to an increase in grant revenue of $228,145 offset by
decreases in other revenues. Non-operating activity in 2020 (excluding appropriations) resulted in a
gain of $10,671 as a result of interest income exceeding interest expenses. Operating expenses
increased $383,097 or 49%, primarily due to an increase in grant expense of $239,770, an increase
in consulting of $46,598, an increase in bad debt expense of $84,176 and an increase in marketing
of $42,849.

Total assets increased by $66,795 or 1.89% and total liabilities increased $346,418 or 65.73% for
the year ended December 31, 2020. Cash and cash equivalents was $1,528,459 at December 31,
2020, an increase of $93,895 from December 31, 2019. Total loans increased by $20,122 to
$1,530,202 presented net of an allowance for loan loss of $231,826 at December 31, 2020.

Financial Statement Analysis:

Below is a comparative summary of the Corporation’s Statements of Net Position as of December
31:

2020 2019

Assets

Capital assets $ 14,340 $ 13,532

Current assets 1,965,043 1,955,259

Long-term assets 1,620,577 1,564,374
Total assets $ 3,599,960 $ 3,533,165
Current liabilities $ 265,342 $ 151,848
Long-term liabilities 608,127 375,203
Deferred inflow of resources 9,404 11,711
Net position

Unrestricted 2,274,505 2,626,467

Capital 14,340 13,532

Restricted 428,242 354,404
Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and net position $ 3,599,960 $ 3,533,165

Page 4



COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

December 31, 2020

Financial Statement Analysis (Continued):

Below is a comparative summary of the Corporation’s statements of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position for the years ended December 31:

2020 2019

Operating revenues

Charges for services $ 34,000 $ 34,000

Interest from loans 57,751 68,578

Grant revenues 363,323 135,178

Membership fees 36,618 55,148

Land sale - 1,282

Other operating revenues - 6,795
Total operating revenues 491,692 300,981
Non-operating revenues

Columbia County appropriation 391,000 460,000

Interest earnings 10,854 27,495
Total non-operating revenues 401,854 487,495
Total revenues 893,546 788,476
Operating expenditures

Personnel and benefits 356,122 347,214

Professional fees 38,535 29,266

Grants 244770 5,000

Office expense 89,436 96,978

Consulting 203,788 157,190

Marketing 23,571 28,211

New initiatives 58,814 20,852

Bad debt 104,176 20,000

Other operating expenditures 51,467 82,871
Total operating expenditures 1,170,679 787,582
Nonoperating expenditures

Interest 183 299
Total nonoperating expenditures 183 299
Total expenditures 1,170,862 787,881
Total revenues in excess of expenditures (277,316) 595
Net position at the beginning of the year 2,994,403 2,993,808

Net position at the end of the year $ 2,717,087 $ 2,994,403

The 2020 original budget included revenue of $810,000 and expenses of $860,000 with a projected
loss of $50,000. During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Corporation amended the budget
after Columbia County reduced the Corporation’s contract fee by $69,000 and in anticipation of other
revenue reductions resulting from COVID 19 impacts to include revenue of $723,000 and expenses
of $807,900 with a projected loss of $84,900.

Page 5



COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

December 31, 2020

Financial Statement Analysis (Continued):

Total revenues were $170,546 more (24%) than the amended budget and total expenditures were
$362,962 more (45%) than the amended budget. Total revenues exceeded the amended budget
primarily due to an increase in grant revenue of $250,323 and the delay of recognizing the Paycheck
Protection Program (PPP) loan of $68,700 as grant income until 2021 when forgiveness by the SBA
was received. Total expenses exceeded the amended budget primarily due to a corresponding
increase in grant expense of $244,770 and an increase in the allowance for loan losses of $100,000,
increasing bad debt expense.

Additional Information:

This report is prepared for the use of the Corporation’s audit committee, management, federal
awarding agencies and pass through entities, and members of the public interested in the affairs of
the Corporation. Questions with regard to this financial report.or requests for additional information
may be addressed to the President/CEO, Columbia Economic Development Corporation, 1 Hudson
City Centre, Suite 301, Hudson, NY 12534.

Page 6



COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

December 31, 2020

(with memorandum only totals at December 31, 2019)

2019
2020 (memorandum only)
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,528,459 $ 1,434,564
Certificate of deposit 153,439 151,029
Restricted cash - fiscal agency 25,344 -
Prepaid expenses 2,888 6,323
Accounts receivable 1,667 1,667
Account receivable - IDA 6,000 -
Grant receivable - 62,750
Land sale receivable, current portion 9,491 9,491
SBA technical assistance grant receivable 19,282 62,740
Loans receivable, current portion 218,473 226,695
Total current assets 1,965,043 1,955,259
FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT, NET
Furniture and equipment, net of $26,027 of
accumulated depreciation 14,340 13,532
Total furniture and equipment, net 14,340 13,532
OTHER ASSETS
Restricted cash 295,730 267,871
Security deposit 3,200 3,200
Land sale receivable, long term portion 9,918 9,918
Loans receivable, less current portion,
net of allowance of $231,826 1,311,729 1,283,385
Total other assets 1,620,577 1,564,374
Total assets 3,599,960 3,633,165
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 29,715 21,465
Accrued expenses 15,581 11,332
Due to fiscal agency 25,344 -
Loans payable - PPP and EIDL, current portion 50,389 -
Loans payable - SBA microloan program, current portion 135,572 110,310
Unearned revenue, current portion 8,741 8,741
Total current liabilities 265,342 151,848
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Loans payable-PPP and EIDL, long-term portion 118,311 -
Loans payable-SBA microloan program, long-term portion 461,505 346,892
Unearned revenue, long-term portion 18,311 18,311
Debt reserve deposit 10,000 10,000
Total non-current liabilities 608,127 375,203
Total liabilities 873,469 527,051
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred grant income 5,237 -
Deferred membership income 4,167 11,711
Total deferred inflows of resources 9,404 11,711
NET POSITION
Unrestricted 2,274,505 2,626,467
Invested in capital assets 14,340 13,532
Restricted
Commerce Park water tower 71,817 71,817
County directed 48,889 48,889
Columbia County Student Connects Program 8,000 -
Columbia County Business Continuity Fund Program 414 -
SBA microloan program 299,122 233,698
Total net position $ 2,717,087 $ 2,994,403

See notes to financial statements.
Page 7



COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION

For the year ended December 31, 2020

(with memorandum only totals for the year ended December 31, 2019)

2019
2020 (memorandum only)
OPERATING REVENUE
Administrative fees - related party $ 24,000 $ 24,000
Administrative fees - Hudson IDA 10,000 10,000
Grant revenue 363,323 135,178
Interest on loans 57,751 68,578
Membership fees 36,618 55,148
Land sale - 1,282
Other income - 6,795
Total operating revenue 491,692 300,981
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel and benefits 356,122 347,214
Grant expense 244,770 5,000
Office expense 89,436 96,978
Program delivery fees 27,287 46,125
Professional fees 38,535 29,266
Consulting 203,788 157,190
Meetings and events 3,020 10,088
Insurance 3,001 3,192
Marketing 23,571 28,211
New initiatives 58,814 20,852
Depreciation 5,427 3,650
Moving expenses - 15,769
Bad debt 104,176 20,000
Miscellaneous 12,732 4,047
Total operating expenses 1,170,679 787,582
OPERATING LOSS (678,987) (486,601)
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Bank interest 10,854 27,495
Interest expense and fees (183) (299)
Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses) 10,671 27,196
Appropriation from the County of Columbia, NY 391,000 460,000
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (277,316) 595
NET POSITION, Beginning of year 2,994,403 2,993,808
NET POSITION, End of year $ 2,717,087 $ 2,994,403

See notes to financial statements.

Page 8



COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended December 31, 2020

(with memorandum only totals for the year ended December 31, 2019)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Administrative fees - related party
Administrative fees - Hudson IDA
Principal disbursed on loans receivable
Principal received on loans receivable
Membership contributions
Grant revenue
Land sale
Interest on loans
Payments to employees
Payments to vendors
Other income

Net cash used for operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Appropriation from the County of
Columbia, NY
Proceeds from loans payable - PPP and EIDL
Payments on SBA microloan program
Proceeds from SBA microloan program

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of certificate of deposit
Purchase of equipment
Interest paid
Interest received
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities

See notes to financial statements,

2019
2020 (memorandum only)
18,000 $ 24,000
10,000 10,000
(671,820) (697,000)
550,589 318,252
29,074 52,300
474,768 96,156
- 10,365
57,751 68,578
(356,122) (347,114)
(666,743) (408,275)
- 13,495
(554,503) (859,243)
391,000 460,000
168,700 -
(110,125) (106,679)
250,000 -
699,575 353,321
(2,410) (151,029)
(6,235) (10,400)
(183) (299)
10,854 27,495
2,026 (134,233)

Page 9



COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended December 31, 2020

(with memorandum only totals for the year ended December 31, 2019)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of year

RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash - fiscal agency
Restricted cash

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash

used for operating activities:
Operating loss

Bad debt reserve (recovery)
Depreciation expense

Changes in assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows:

Prepaids
Loans receivable
Land sale receivable

SBA technical assistance grant receivable

Grant receivable
Accounts receivable
Account receivable - IDA
Security deposit
Accounts payable

Due to fiscal agency
Unearned revenue

Debt reserve deposit
Land deposit

Accrued expenses
Deferred grant income
Deferred membership income

Net cash used for operating activities

See notes to financial statements.

$ 147,098  $ (640,155)
1,702,435 2,342,590

$ 1849533 $ 1,702,435
$ 1528459 $ 1,434,564
25,344 -
295,730 267,871

$ 1849533 $ 1,702,435
$ (678,987) $ (486,601)
104,176 20,000
5,427 3,650
3,435 (1,554)
(124,298) (378,748)

- 9,083

43,458 (11,242)

62,750 (12,750)

- 100

(6,000) -

- (3,200)

8,250 9,369
25,344 -

- (10,295)

- 10,000

- (3,300)

4,249 3,828
5,237 (4,735)
(7,544) (2,848)

$ (554,503) $ (859,243)

Page 10



COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2020

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ORGANIZATION

Financial Reporting Entity

The Columbia Economic Development Corporation (“CEDC” or the “Corporation”) was organized as
a not-for-profit entity for the purpose of promoting and developing industry and job development in
Columbia County, New York (the “County”). The Corporation is a component unit of the County, is a
separate entity, and operates independently of the County.

Programs of the Corporation

General Operating

The Corporation derives its revenues primarily from Columbia County appropriations and from
administrative fees from related parties such as Columbia County Capital Resource Corporation
(“CRC”) and Columbia County Industrial Development Agency (‘CCIDA”). The fund also derives
revenue from interest from loan receivables.

Loan Program

The loan program offers loans to local businesses, often at a discounted interest rate, to attract
business to the County as well as expand business growth from existing businesses already located
in the County. The fund also is used to continue offering the Microbusiness seminar series and is
used to fund expenses as it applies to the administration and delivery of programs.

The loan program receives grant money from time to time from CDBG-NYS. As a requirement of the
grant, the loan program awards a contingent grant (usually based on employment goals) to local
organizations after meeting certain NYS grant requirements. If requirements of the grant are not met
by the local organization, the grant converts to a loan. The Corporation treats these arrangements
as loans until the contingencies are met. As of December 31, 2020, the Corporation’s loans
receivables include $200,000 of these loan types, expected to be forgiven in 2022, comprised of:

Original Loan Balance at
Loan Balance December 31, 2020
Flanders/Precisionaire Corporation $ 200,000 $ 200,000

CDBG Small Cities

Grant funds received with performance requirements are recorded as unearned revenue in the
period granted. The Corporation records a receivable for the amount of the loan lent out or grant
made to the third party business. As obligations are met, the loan is paid off or written down and the
loan balance is earned or forfeited. Unearned revenue is recognized in income as performance
obligations are met and contingent grants made are recognized in expense as earned by the
grantee.

267ED424-02 Grant

The 267ED424-02 grant offered assistance to local businesses by offering low interest business
loans. The Corporation receives interest and principal payments on a monthly basis. At
December 31, 2020, the loan balance outstanding was $27,052.

Page 11



COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2020

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ORGANIZATION (Continued)
Programs of the Corporation (Continued)

Microbusiness Program

The microbusiness program is funded by the loan program. The program offers technical assistance
to local businesses. The program also offers seminars taught by local business owners and
professionals.

SBA-Microloan Program

Loans are provided to small businesses in Columbia and Greene Counties funded by the Small
Business Administration (SBA). Loans over 120 days past due arerequired to be charged off. The
loan maturity date should not exceed six years on Microloans. The Corporation may charge up to
7.75% over the Corporation’s cost of funds on a microloan of more than $10,000 and up to 8.5%
over the Intermediary’s cost of funds on a microloan of $10,000 or less. Amounts loaned to the
Corporation are maintained in a restricted revolving loanfund. The Corporation is also required to
maintain a separate loan loss reserve fund with its own funds representing at least 15% of SBA
funds received.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Corporation have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting
and reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when.incurred. In accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, the Corporation applies all applicable
Governmental Accounting -Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements as the Corporation is a
component unit of the County of Columbia, New York (the “County”), a governmental entity. The
Corporation does not apply any Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) or AICPA
pronouncements post November 30, 1989, as clarified by GASB No. 62. In accordance with GASB
standards, balances and activity for the Corporation are presented as an enterprise fund.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows
of Resources, and Net Position, and GASB Statement No. 65, ltems Previously Reported as Assets
and Liabilities, defined and classified deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources. A deferred outflow of resources is a consumption of net assets that applies to future
period(s), and as such, will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until
that time. A deferred inflow of resources is an acquisition of net assets that applies to future
period(s), and as such, will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

Statement 63 changed how governments organize their statements of financial position (such as the
current government-wide statement of net assets and the governmental funds balance sheet).

As a result of Statement 63, financial statements will include deferred outflows of resources and

deferred inflows of resources (“deferrals”), in addition to assets and liabilities, and will report net
position instead of net assets.

Page 12



COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2020

NOTE 2 —- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (Continued)

Membership fees collected in the current year that will be recognized as revenue next year and grant
payments received in advance of the grant term are classified as a deferred inflow.

Prior Year Amounts

Amounts shown for December 31, 2019, in the accompanying statements are included to provide a
basis for comparison with December 31, 2020 and present summarized totals only. Accordingly, the
December 31, 2019 amounts are not intended to present all information necessary for a fair
presentation in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Budgetary Data
The budget policies are as follows:

In October of each year, the President/CEO submits a tentative budget to the Board of Directors for
their approval for the next fiscal year. The tentative budget includes proposed expenditures and the
proposed means of financing, which is to be used as a guide of activity for the fiscal year.

Income Taxes

A provision for income tax has not been provided for in these financial statements, as the
Corporation is a not-for-profit corporation exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code.

The Corporation has evaluated any uncertain tax positions and related income tax contingencies
and determined uncertain positions, if any, are not material to the financial statements. Penalties
and interest assessed by income taxing authorities are included in operating expenses, if incurred.
None of the Corporation’s returns are currently under examination.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those amounts.

The determination of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is based on estimates that are
particularly susceptible to significant changes in the economic environment and market conditions.
In connection with the determination of the estimated losses on loans, management obtains
independent appraisals for significant collateral.

The Corporation’s loans are generally secured by specific items of collateral including real property,
consumer assets, and business assets. Although the Corporation has a diversified loan portfolio, a
substantial portion of its debtors’ ability to honor their contracts is dependent on local economic
conditions in Columbia County, New York.

Page 13



COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2020

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Use of Estimates (Continued)

While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, further reductions in the
carrying amounts of loans may be necessary based on changes in local economic conditions.
Because of these factors, it is reasonably possible that the estimated losses on loans may change
materially in the near term.

As discussed in Note 6, the Corporation obtained a loan from the Small Business Administration’s
(“SBA”) Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”). According to the rules of the SBA, the Corporation is
required to retain PPP loan documentation for six years after the date the loan is forgiven or repaid
in full, and permit authorized representatives of the SBA, including representatives of its Office of
Inspector General, to access such files upon request. Should the SBA conduct such a review and
reject all or some of the Corporation’s judgments pertaining to satisfying PPP loan eligibility or
forgiveness conditions, the Corporation may be required to adjust previously reported amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

Contribution revenue is recognized in the period it is unconditional, measurable, and future
installments are considered probable of collection. Contribution revenue that is restricted as a result
of a purpose or time restriction is included as a component of “restricted net position”, when
applicable.

Administrative revenue is recognized in the period services are provided and payments are generally
received from related parties on a quarterly basis. Grant revenue is recognized on cost reimbursable
contracts in the period the costs are incurred. Advances on grants prior to costs being incurred in
accordance with the terms of the grant agreement are deferred until the period costs are incurred.
Membership revenue is recognized as revenue over the period of membership.

Interest on loans is recognized in the period earned over the life of the related loans receivable.

Operating revenues include revenue generated from ongoing operating activities. Non-operating
revenues include investing, financing and other non-recurring activities.

Columbia County Appropriation

For the year ended December 31, 2020, Columbia County appropriated $391,000 for unrestricted
use by the Corporation. The Corporation recognizes appropriated income in the period appropriated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Corporation considers all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

Certificates of Deposit

The Corporation records certificate of deposits at amortized cost.

Page 14



COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2020

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost and fair market value for donated items. Maintenance
and repairs are expensed as incurred whereas major repairs and betterments are capitalized.
Property and equipment comprise office equipment, furniture and software. Depreciation is provided
for using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, which are:

Computer/Software 3-5 years
Furniture and Equipment 5—-10 years

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses

Loans are stated at their recorded investment, which is the amount of unpaid principal, reduced by
an allowance for loan losses. Interest is calculated by using the simple interest method.

The allowance for loan losses reflects management’s judgment of probable loan losses inherent in
the portfolio at the balance sheet date. The Corporation uses a disciplined process and methodology
to establish the allowance for loan losses. To determine the total allowance for loan losses,
management estimates the reserves needed for each loan outstanding.

To determine the balance of the allowance account, loans are evaluated on a case by case basis
and future losses are projected using historical experience adjusted for current economic and
industry conditions. Management exercises significant judgment in determining the estimation
method that fits the credit risk characteristics of each case. Management must use judgment in
establishing additional input factors for estimating purposes. The assumptions used to determine the
allowance are periodically reviewed by management to ensure that their theoretical foundation,
assumptions, data integrity, computational processes, and reporting practices are appropriate and
properly documented.

The establishment of the allowance for loan losses relies on a consistent process that requires
multiple layers of management review and judgment and responds to changes in economic
conditions, customer behavior, and collateral value, among other influences. From time to time,
events or economic factors may affect the loan portfolio, causing management to provide additional
amounts to, or release balances from, the allowance for loan losses.

Management monitors differences between estimated and actual incurred loan losses. This
monitoring process includes periodic assessments by senior management of loan portfolios and the
assumptions used to estimate incurred losses in those portfolios. Additions to the allowance for loan
losses are made by charges to the provision for loan losses. Credit exposures deemed to be
uncollectible are charged against the allowance for loan losses. Recoveries of previously charged off
amounts are credited to the allowance for loan losses.

Page 15



COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2020

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Concentration of Credit and Market Risk

Financial instruments that potentially expose the Corporation to concentrations of credit and market
risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, certificates of deposit and loans receivable. Cash
and cash equivalents and certificates of deposit are maintained at Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation insured financial institutions and credit exposure is limited to any one institution. As of
December 31, 2020, the Corporation was in excess of the FDIC limits of approximately $1,081,000.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to notes receivables are limited due to the diverse industry
backgrounds of its borrowers. Furthermore, management feels its borrower approval processes and
regular review of provisions for loan losses, adequately provides for any material credit risks.
Generally, sufficient collateral or a personal guarantee is obtained for all loans at the time of
disbursement. Collateral is generally in the form of a mortgage on real property or a chattel lien on
equipment title.

The Corporation received $391,000 from the County of Columbia representing 44% of its total
revenue for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Investment Policy

The Corporation’s has an investment policy that includes authorized investments of the following
types: special time deposit accounts, certificates of deposit, obligations of the United States of
America, obligations guaranteed by agencies of the United States of America where the payment of
principal and interest are guaranteed by the United States of America, obligations of the State of
New York and money market/savings accounts. All deposits of the Corporation in excess of Federal
Deposit Insurance Act (FDIC) coverage shall be secured by a pledge of eligible securities with an
aggregate market value equal to'the aggregate amount of such deposits in excess of FDIC.

Interest Income on Loans

Interest on loans is accrued and credited to income based on the principal amount outstanding. The
accrual of interest on loans is discontinued when, in accordance with adopted policies, there is an
indication that the borrower may be unable to meet payments as they become due. Upon such
discontinuance, all unpaid accrued interest is reversed.

Risks and Uncertainties

In December 2019, a novel strain of coronavirus disease (“COVID-19”) was first reported in Wuhan,
China. Less than four months later, on March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared
COVID-19 a pandemic.

As part of its efforts to minimize the financial impact of COVID-19, the Organization applied for and
received two loans offered by federal government programs. See Note 6 for further discussion of
these loans.

The extent of COVID-19’s effect on the Organization’s operational and financial performance will
depend on future developments, including the duration, spread and intensity of the pandemic, all of
which are uncertain and difficult considering the rapidly evolving landscape. As a result, it is not
currently possible to ascertain the overall impact of COVID-19 on the Organization’s finances.

Page 16



COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2020

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Risks and Uncertainties (Continued)
However, if the pandemic continues to evolve into a severe worldwide health crisis, the disease
could have a material adverse effect on the Organization’s activities, results of operations, financial

condition and cash flow.

In addition, the potential for additional collection risk to the Organization’s loans receivable balance
exists, however, the impact is uncertain and difficult to predict at this time.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March __, 2021, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

As part of its efforts to further minimize the financial impact of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, the
Corporation applied for and received a second Paycheck Protection Program Loan under the
CARES Act for $64,114 in February 2021. The Corporation expects this loan to be fully forgiven.
NOTE 3 - CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT

The Corporation has a certificate of deposit (CD) at Berkshire Bank. The CD is for a 13-month term
scheduled to mature in October 2021. The CD’s interest rate was 0.449% and had a balance of
$153,439 as of December 31, 2020.

NOTE 4 - LOANS RECEIVABLE

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Corporation loaned $671,820 to 27 local businesses.
During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Corporation increased its allowance for loan losses
by $100,000 due to concerns related to the impacts of the COVID 19 pandemic.

A summary of loan activity is as follows:

Balance at (Write-offs) Balance at

December New and December

31, 2019 Lendings Payments Recoveries 31, 2020
Loan Fund $ 1,203,912 $ 292,020 $ 350,281 $ (11,144) $ 1,134,507
CDBG Small Cities 27,052 - - - 27,052
SBA Microloan 424 584 379,800 200,308 (3,607) 600,469

1,655,548 $ 671,820 $ 550,589 $ (14,751) 1,762,028

Less: Allowance for
loan losses (145,468) (231,826)

Total Loans $ 1,510,080 $ 1,530,202

Page 17



COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2020

NOTE 5 - FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT
A summary of furniture and equipment is as follows as of December 31, 2020:

December 31,2019  Acquisitions  Disposals = December 31, 2020

Furniture and equipment $ 34132 % 6,235 $ - $ 40,367
Accumulated depreciation (20,600) (5,427) - (26,027)
Total Furniture and Equipment $ 13,632 § 808 $ - $ 14,340

Depreciation expense was $5,427 during the year ended December 31, 2020.
NOTE 6 —- LOANS PAYABLE - PPP AND EIDL

In May 2020, the Organization applied for and received a loan in the amount of $68,700 from Key
Bank through the Small Business Association’'s (“SBA”) Paycheck Protection Program (the
“Program”). This loan has allowed the Organization to retain a full workforce to date. The SBA loan
was subject to forgiveness should the Organization demonstrate to the lender the funds were spent
on specific payroll, debt interest, rent, and/or utility type expenses during the 8 or 24 weeks
subsequent to receipt of the loan proceeds. If not forgiven, the loan would accrue interest at 1.00%
per annum and mature on May 1, 2022, with the Organization making monthly payments of $3,866
including principal and interest beginning December 1, 2020 through maturity. Subsequent to year
end, in February 2021, the loan was fully forgiven by the SBA.

In July 2020, the Organization also applied for and received a loan in the amount of $100,000 from
the SBA’s Emergency Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL) Program. Interest accrues on the EIDL loan at a
fixed rate of 2.75% per annum. There is-a 12-month deferral period of all principal payments due on
the EIDL loan, with interest accruing on the principal balance during this 12-month deferral period.

Beginning August 2021, the Organization will begin to make 348 monthly payments of $428, with the
first payments received by the SBA going first towards the accrued interest to date until the accrued
interest is paid off in full. Once the accrued interest is paid in full, these monthly payments will then
go towards principal and interest.

The EIDL loan matures on July 24, 2050 and is collateralized by all tangible and intangible property
of the Organization, including equipment, accounts receivable, and deposit accounts.

Maturities of the loans payable are as follows:

PPP Loan EIDL Loan Total
2021 % 49,417 $ 972 $ 50,389
2022 19,283 2,378 21,661
2023 - 2,444 2,444
2024 - 2,512 2,512
2025 - 2,582 2,582
Thereafter - 89,112 89,112

$ 68,700 $ 100,000 § 168,700

Page 18



COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2020

NOTE 7 - RESTRICTED NET POSITION

Restricted net position at December 31, 2020, consists of the following:

Commerce Park water tower $ 71,817
County directed 48,889
Columbia County Student Connects Program 8,000
Columbia County Business Continuity Fund Program 414
SBA microloan program 299,122
Total Restricted Net Position $ 428,242

In 2008, the Corporation did not remit the principal back to Columbia County, New York for
Commerce Park loans. The principal is to be retained by the Organization to aide in the construction
of the water tower within Commerce Park. Refer to Note 9 for more information on the restrictions.
See note 9 for more information on the County directed restricted net position balance.

The SBA microloan program restricted net position balance above represents the balance of the
Corporation’s SBA microloan program that has been borrowed from the SBA but has not been lent
to qualified businesses as of December 31, 2020.

The “Columbia County Student Connects Program” balance of $8,000 and the “Columbia County
Business Continuity Fund Program” balance of $414 represents grant funds received and restricted

for specific purposes.
NOTE 8 - SBA MICROLOAN PROGRAM

Since 2003, the Corporation took the steps toward acquiring the Hudson Development Corporation’s
SBA loan portfolio by establishing a small business loan program. The Corporation acquired the
SBA loan program in-2008. Total loans outstanding, net of an allowance under this program of
$83,920, totaled $516,549 at December 31, 2020.

The Corporation borrows money.from SBA loan awards in order to fund loans given to businesses
participating in the SBA program. The following illustrates the amounts payable to the SBA:

Balance at Balance at
December 31, 2019  Drawdowns Payments December 31, 2020
$ 457202 $ 250,000 $ 110,125 $ 597,077

Page 19



COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2020

NOTE 8 — SBA MICROLOAN PROGRAM (Continued)

Once draws have been made from the SBA, the Corporation pays the SBA back based on an
amortization schedule for each specific drawdown. The following shows the combined expected
payout of the SBA drawdowns—Draw Four, Draw Five, Draw Six, and Draw Seven:

December 31, Balance
2021 $ 135,572
2022 107,500
2023 89,561
2024 64,445
2025 64,445

Thereafter 135,555
Total $ 597,077

Each drawdown has repayments of principal and interest, with each drawdown having a separate
interest rate based on the agreement—1.625% (Draw Four), 0.75% (Draw Five), 1.25% (Draw Six),
and 1.75% (Draw Seven), per annum.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Corporation borrowed $250,000 from an additional
SBA drawdown (Draw Seven). In December 2020; the Corporation was approved for an additional
$300,000 borrowing and in January 2021, the Corporation drew $125,000 of this additional loan
award.

NOTE 9 - COMMERCE PARK LAND

Beginning in 2005, Columbia County initiated a program to sell undeveloped land it owns in
Commerce Park through a-.component unit, the Columbia County IDA. CEDC works directly with the
buyer on the County’s behalf. CEDC receives a deposit from the buyer and in turn uses this money
to pay for surveying and legal fees associated with the transfer of the land.

CEDC recognizes a receivable for the sales price due from the buyer and a liability to the County for
the same amount. The CCIDA plays an administrative role in the transfer of the land and receives a
stipend from the first payment made. The CEDC retains the interest portion earned on land sale
receivables as payment for servicing the loans and the remaining principal portion is forwarded to
the County. In 2008 and only for 2008, the CEDC retained the principal and interest payments, as
agreed upon with the County, to assist the County with the possible future construction of a water
tower in Commerce Park. The principal forgiven during 2008 was recognized as revenue.

In June 2016, the Corporation sold land in the Commerce Park to a local individual for $50,000, with
$4,500 being paid to the Corporation as a deposit in 2015. The Corporation received a $45,500 five-
year note at 4.5% per annum with payments commencing on June 8, 2017. The note provides for an
annual payment of $10,365 of principal and interest, with a final payment due to the Corporation on
June 8, 2021. The principal portion, $48,889, of the note, net of legal fees of $1,111, normally
remitted to the County was recognized as revenue during the year ended December 31, 2016. The
County asked CEDC to retain the principal portion as restricted net position to be used as directed
by the County in the future.

Page 20



COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2020

NOTE 10 — PENSION PLAN

The Corporation has a SARSEP pension plan. The Corporation pays 5% of eligible employee’s
gross wages each year. For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Corporation recorded $11,956
in pension expense.

NOTE 11 - UNEARNED REVENUE

As of December 31, 2020, unearned revenue (note 1) is comprised of:

CDBG Small Cities:
Angello's Distributing, Inc. $ 27,052
Total unearned revenue $ 27,052

NOTE 12 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Corporation received $24,000 in administrative fees
from Columbia County Industrial Development Agency (CCIDA). During 2020, the Corporation paid
$5,000 to Columbia County Capital Resource Corporation (CCCRC) in the form of a grant. As of
December 31, 2020, $6,000 was due from CCIDA.

NOTE 13 — RENT EXPENSE

The Corporation rents office space under the terms of a lease commencing September 1, 2019 and
terminating August 31, 2024. The lease includes an option to renew for an additional five-year term.
The lease calls for monthly payments ranging from $3,200 to $3,532 over the term of the lease.
During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Corporation paid $38,720 of rent expense. Future
minimum lease commitments are as follows:

2021 § 39,688
2022 40,680
2023 41,696
2024 28,256

$ 150,320

NOTE 14 — FISCAL AGENT / SPONSORSHIP ARRANGEMENTS

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Corporation acted as a fiscal agent for two
organizations. As of December 31, 2020, the Corporation held $25,344 of cash shown as
“‘Restricted cash — fiscal agency” on the statement of net position. As of December 31, 2020,
$25,344 is presented as a liability shown as “Due to fiscal agency” on the statement of net position.
The Corporation earned administrative fees of $3,440 on one agreement. As an agent, the
Corporation does not record any revenues or expenses received/paid on behalf of the entity.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Corporation acted as a fiscal sponsor for two
organizations. Fiscal sponsorship revenue and expenses are recorded on behalf of the entity in
these financial statements. Included in grant revenue is $239,284 and grant expense is $238,870 for
the year ended December 31, 2020, related to these agreements. As of December 31, 2020, $414 is
restricted for the Columbia County Business Continuity Fund Program related to one of these
arrangements. No administrative fees were received from these agreements.

Page 21



REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Chairman and Board of
Columbia Economic Development Corporation:

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of
Columbia Economic Development Corporation as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Columbia Economic
Development Corporation’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
March _, 2021.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Columbia Economic
Development Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.

Page 22



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Columbia Economic Development
Corporation’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Hudson, New York
March __, 2021

Page 23



UHY
Certified Public Accountants

One Hudson City Centre, Suite 204
Hudson, NY 12534

Phone 518-828-1565
Fax 518-828-2672
Web www.uhy-us.com

March __, 2021

To the Board of Directors of
Columbia Economic Development Corporation:

We have audited the financial statements of Columbia Economic Development Corporation as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2020, and have issued-our report thereon dated March __, 2021.
Professional standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit.

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit

As communicated in our engagement letter dated November 23, 2020, our responsibility, as described
by professional standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements
that have been prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material
respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your respective
responsibilities.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of
Columbia Economic Development Corporation solely for the purpose of determining our audit
procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control.

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process.
However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to
communicate to you.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated
to you.



Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence

The engagement team and others in our firm, as appropriate have complied with all relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence. We have applied a safeguard which included a quality control
partner review to the independence threat of our preparation of the Organization’s financial statements
and preparation of the Organization’s annual tax return.

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices
Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of
the significant accounting policies adopted by Columbia Economic Development Corporation is
included in Note 2 to the financial statements. There has been no initial selection of accounting policies
and no changes in significant accounting policies or their application during 2020. No matters have
come to our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the
methods used to account for significant unusual transactions-and (2) the effect of significant
accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative
guidance or consensus.

Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge
and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain
accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements
and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from
management’s current judgments.

The most sensitive accounting estimate affecting the financial statements is the allowance for loan
losses.

Management’s estimate of the allowance for loan losses is based on a review of outstanding loans
receivable on an individual loan basis. Management performs a risk assessment of each loan
considering collateral, payment history, delinquency status, and other matters indicating the
borrower’s ability to pay. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the
allowance for loan losses and determined that the estimate is reasonable in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.

Financial Statement Disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive
because of their significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting
Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s financial statements related to the allowance for loan
losses, revenue recognition, and loans.

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of
the audit.



Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and
likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are ftrivial, and
communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require
us to also communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant
classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole.
Management has corrected all identified misstatements.

In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected
misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures.
None of the misstatements identified by us as a result of our audit procedures and corrected by
management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken
as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, which could be significant to Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s financial
statements or the auditor’s report. No such disagreements arose during the course of the audit.

Representations Requested from Management

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in a
separate letter dated March __, 2021.

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations
with other accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters.

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues

In the normal course of our professional association with Columbia Economic Development
Corporation, we generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting
principles and auditing standards, operating and regulatory conditions affecting the entity, and
operational plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters
discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s
auditors.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors and management of
Columbia Economic Development Corporation and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,



oE> 1202/91/20 TLVvEL BL'Z00'E L0E90'0L ETUSE'WE  000O0GE BL0T/SLZ0 D71 'SPOOD BUUIN 15-02Tt
Bual

og> SLOTHTOL £67L05 V52892 E9SY'6Y 00°000°00L BO0Z/L0/% BWOR S.0M2N £1-0ZZL

oE > 0ZATIEOIL0 ZEBYS 11°80E"L £E2TZ'¥L ECTETYL 2L0Z/1ZIE0 saujoD 537 28-0221
rUDUIOMPOTAA

og> BLOZILO/B0 ++LLE'TL  6E'8LLY 85'990'¢ 86°990°CE SLOZ/LO/30 WIT 01-022

0g > 082S+ 05'25%'7 020Z/06/60  BROMEYD ‘udsuuer 08-02Z1
—

ne> LZOTI9LZO  00°00L TL0E 28'vsy 9£°906'L vZ'196'] 0Z02/20/60 ‘ZHEMS SaLler GL-0ZZL
oT1

oe> \ZOTR0/ED BTHSE 918 69'97¢ GEEL9YZ 00000'ST LZ0ereyen  Ksiseoy uospny 00L-C2Z4

0g> VZOEIPO/ED £E°CEY £9°9916 00°000°00Z  00°000°002 BLOZ/OS/OL 0D A3C vospNY 29-0Z2)
1]

og > LZOTBTILD §9°L8E L0946l ¥ETEE'S 05°€80'0F  00'000°05 YLOZ/S S0 ‘SOSIUD UoSpNy BO-OZZL

ng> LZOT/ LD 00009 00°009 00°008 0TOTI0E/E0  ,.S9SIUD UOSPNY 18-0221
ey

e LZOTRLZD ESTO0¥ 62°€£8'2 lgesetl BLORLEL  coton'se LLOZIELS0 SUBLTY-UOSPNEH 0S-0221
I8y

e > 1202/eT20 95°98L 8ZTETE §5'v2Y SP'GIG' L 00°000°CH 0202/LE/20 SUBLIY-UOSPNK [ 7<A]

g LEOZ/ZMZO LOEBE SEBLE) 09°9¥5°9 OFESH'R B0'GO0'G1L SLOZIOLOL T RaM0 'S 2D 5¥-022t
“lpunen

e \Z0ZZLZ0 89TOF L' 2esls BLL08LL  00°00D'ST BLOT/FLIBO UmojLRWIE G0TTL
)

ac> VEOZ/S0IE0  vLYEY 99°46.') 04'820' 0E1E'FE DUOOD'0E BLOZ/0/00  J99g UMOLELLIES 89022t

0> LZ0Z/aTI0 ¥8EDY SL'B0F 029021 09°€64'€2  00°0O0'ST 0202/01L/E0 o7y Anap 152y 60T
~"peod

0> BLOZIYORD 19 +Liv'e 5'BEL'T G5 ZI0GL 00°000'sk 9L0Z/70/80 weyiey) 1583 £€-0Z21

0E> BLOZIFLED 2398 08'158'} [N earA ZISP0'ee £102/20/60 oU| “Uesifg 80022t
dnuess

0e> 00°008'72  00'008'¢Z 0ZUZ/S LB apisAqunon g102ZL
)

0> VZOE/ALZ0 00'SLT or'ee 09°ELS oresy'yl  00°000'SH 02022160 Auned elquiniod FL0TL

o> LZ0Z/BLEC ZEE8P 81829} 121£8'9 92'699'G 00°008'24 LLOZ/R0/G0  "-SIES 2D sumag or-0zZL

Qg > L202P0RR0 DOEST vL 406" PULGE'S S5'850'% 00°0SE'sE BLOTIFE/SO  SHOMPOOM BNV Figirral
5

e > 0Z0Z/SL0L LO'EET'6E 9E90'y BE'BBE'EY 00°000'08 BLOZ/02190 2 SHOMIN MOV S-0Z2L
]

g > 000008 00°COD'ER 00T/ L0l 2 O MOV $8-0Z2L

o> DZUZ/SEISD 00°SEO0L 66468 D0"005°ZL 00°008'2L BLOZIBOS0 977 SooBLsexeiqy 090221

0e> V2OZVERO LY LIS YSELS £4°088') F'E9V'ET 00°000°0E 0Z02/S0/E0 DTIEHD bLL 04022t

g > 1202/20/80 $O0S0'L SOFPZ'OL  SEOPETL  S0'659'79  00°000'SL LIOZTIELZL "M 1P96G SS0ID Ly W0EzL
SEJUNL

0g> 0Z0Z/08/LL 2892 05 0ar'e jelvRivigera 00°000's 81028250 ey SNz ¥r-0Z2L

”Em.n.__...” - unowy

S asausnil | rediund

L gaueRey

15q sheq | 352d 104

S .HH.W«EN umﬂuﬂp_ Htl.l..

e S SAGRIMUNS s

 pedipupd

yeq oS0l

G40 | sfieg

(suonoesuel fy)
soanog Buipung Ag

LZ0Z/L1/€0 - S§10Z/10/10 Polad a3 10} spund Iy Jo} Joday souejeq ell]

Nd 02 20 120g/11/e0




S ggeigeet T LeeR0sl 6400208

.. 00000°187

g IR suee)
.m.nmo.n_n_.mgw'vcaunm.o:_d.mw

e LA AT AN A )] €997y 00°000°62 00°000°52 PAN ALt TRHESI] L S BOZ-0PZL

ge> 610Z/L0/80 BY'BEL'6 L5PEE'S LL00L'YT 000005 SHOZ/10/90 eg0-0v2L

ge> Q20 Le0 Ab9es TEPELL #0'060'6 Q0'000's SE0S/LE/80  TTUHON JO SPOSH 73 BSL-O¥EL
o0

oe > SLOZNLZ0 LE7662°) ) 892582 0000007 oUTG00'0E 81L0Z/%0/80 welgeyn 1seg EEL-0YTL

o> 19'55% Lopie LL0Z/8Z/60  vad yiws Aorva erZ-0vZL

020%/L0/50

Sieieee

TTheg'eal. -

00000

PRBLE'LIS | 2609)4C8

.m.. Rt
T LGE5 L8R

00000’z

' 8ue0] 0 :pun3 Ues 93D

IGLLLSEE  TTI9REIL  PYELETLLE ¢ ZERRLiSE oo 7 0810-0030 - punz e ooy
a7
e 0000C'SE  0CO00'SZ  LPOZLLEZ0  UOSPRLIATAM  L0L-0200
oz s 0ZZOMEL EElSY'eT  ZEISTE 00000S Y —
og> \202ITRG ZaTY €997 ZSIT0L LWLV 0U000ST  SI078S0 oo Bupepoem 90zl
og > BLOZ/LEOL £249¢ 1960 P - e e ——
e ozeskel 039Sk 0Z0ZNEL Zéewl uey  9p0zeh
oE > L202/20/80 107 L08 SE'OPZZ SLGLT'Y LEv8l'Sy 00°000'08 GLOZ/8LEL “OU| WB NOALL GS0CTL
Jueingsay
0g > 0T02/50/80 Iv'LEL'T6 YLiTe's Q0700000 02'000'00) LLOZTIELIOL puod 4L A irrAS
0E> VEOEOLED 00055 ) 00055 000591 0Z0Z/OE/E0  Alie 30Bdaq 2y, ea0ZZl
%o 0U000'ST  00000'SE  0Z02IGZAED  BURN R RCAB),  Li022l
0g > LZ0Z/E0/E] Z9°T0Y GEQLLE LZ266'Z 5L010'2E 00'000'SE LL0Z/8L0L  sasuding gHNS eroeet
E> §L0z/0ZEL go'BrL'el BEYSLE 00°000'¢2 oo'ono'se 2L0ZPET0 se-02ZL
0> LZ0CI8E20 8698t 8LLYr) 98009 PEBEE L 00°000‘TL 0202/0L/P0 [V Rarr AR
a
oe> Getelcoizo STEr SIS LN DO000'ST  PLOTADEE  WBdN00IGAILON 2207
0g > LERTR0E0 YLALO'L LB'PBO'6E £2°E80'LS 688519 4L Z5'869'82L SLOZ/L0/S0 T SEIIAAG XIUd0yd 1202zl
oe> lZ0ZRER0 1EISEY  0368e ZrgeL'.  8rPlEdl  00DO0SE  GIOTLMEh | WROEREROWING  8S0Z2h
o> BLOZUZEL Z0USTL  SUMO0E 66 6666S 0000008 ti0zELEL UM OuBEOED e 81-02ZL
0e > BLOT/STIF0 9L5YS YEOEE'Y +¥2'258'9Z 00'000°5E £L0Z/eTFD dioD 1eqeui teg B1-0ZZ1
og > 0000008 000000 0Z0Z/BC RNMRMSMEDIPID  BL-0ZZL
> Pt T —— PPZSISL | SI0TCKE0 eI MRRRM P BrUZTl
0e \Z0e/8LZ0 9r°96a 0989’6 6YTETEE  IEL0LD  OUDOUCY  CLOZROEE  OTIUOSPNHePI0 810l
e \Z07/94Z0 SEEEh 95TBEL  YZOSE'  BZSEUS 000G  LLOGELAD  OTiSBUMGOrNIN | 8g-0zZh
08 > 0ZAZ/L1L/80 00°GOQ'0CL  $O'000'S 00'000°0G L 00"000° 00 6L0Z/10/S0  ~o sBunds apeiw PS-02ZL
T T SERE R el RO P [EERAR I NSRIEUR IR [PPSR R ERURI T IR R h .. ......ou:m_u.m._... Squneuay e ERC LA IR
ysedsfeq | IsEaImOL [ 40S T 43N | suN04 | 4smuHA | tOML | 4EN0TT T aND | lea | wnowy - || smer |- mdouad || ledupd | weot. | seqesory | sowonog. | gmesy
—_——— — T 900 Y08 sponed e T ..m..:qLEEmummaﬁ | e e =T - Do ITULTH - R -
(suonoesuen [|y)
G 10 Z abeg Wd 02 20 L20Z/LL/E0

aainog Buipung Ag
1202/11/€0 - SLOZ/LO/LQ POUR U} Jo} spun4 |y 10} Hoday eoueleq (el




g >

RAVAArA]

€2'926

YEIVG'Y

99°L00°9L

00008

00°000'sZ

8102/32/E0

SS93UNd
2gsunge

2710821

Clegaetr  ovesces | zeeey'tzz SLYOLZEL 00000'8SE. £ 61 50l VS, pung vcr vas
08 > VZ0ZIBLIED FETLE 0862 8£'926'02  ZOEL0E 00°600'0€ SI0L/G0/60  TTICeaLsuBipien 2210821
0g > VZ0Z/Z0IE0 £uLEy S9'EE6') SO'BLY'Y VE0ZE0Z 00700062 6L0Z/AL/EL oup wiHBd 4oL B0S0SZL
05> 0Z0Z/92/60 BY'8TEL sges's 00'000'ST 00°000'sT 910z/0e/€0  ~p Buprv'mogEL  20L0STL
0E> LZ0T/BLIZE LBPLY 31164 Z0'50L°L 86PEZT) 000000 GLOT/ST/0 " “HIOA MBN UOSIES 05-0SZ4
0g> LE0Z/ZLZG 00008 gl Ll YOL85°TL  00000'SE 0Z0Z/30/40 £ Dimy, aagilly 460521
g > 1Z0Z/8LZ0 6Z°88E s1ese UEB9SL OLLEFET G0'000'GZ QR02/ZZIE0 UHEIZGARY PO 2560571
ot > LZ0Z/9L/Z0 OP'609 S£T6e'8 SULEV'ET  VERIYS 00°C00'se SL0Z/EDEL  OTI'UOSPAH 9PlO  2L00STL
og> 0Z0Z/60/0L 99°068'E S8yRL'y 00°000°5T a0'ooe'sz 910z/11/50 “odeN BRI YRO  BYZU0SZL
o€ > 0z0Z/30/60 VZ'LIE'L 90080 00°000°0L a0°000'0 SL0z/80/40  ~wbuI IBWS S BSO-0SZL
aE> 0Z0Z/92/50 99'68Y'S 096451 00°000'G 4 00°000'sL BLOZOLOL "™ 3BMOLE D R DD €071
“ipunet
as> LZ0Z/FLZ0 LE9ZY 89'B2S'e LEvEe's 695918l 00°000'SE 3LOZWLIE0 UMOIUBULSS  BOZ-0SEZL
o> 120Z/8L/Z0 Z0BTY zE9ZS') oEE8le 09184 00'000'SE 0Z0E/OLED diegynoN eI EgEOSEl
oe> 6L0Z/12/S0 807LSY TZ'265'E OL'BEL'0T 00°COC'ET PLOZ/Z/B0 TTWEIA IS0 0Rg BZ0-0STL
og > LZOTIBLTO PO'E6Y £5'046'8 0R'EZYEE 0TI 00°000°SE SLOZELAO  THSnpU 100521
e
0> LZ0ZT/ILED ¥E POV 11295'E £9'646'6 1£°020'6L  0O000'SE 8102102790 BHOMIUN MOV BEZ0SZL

L'g68'Z !

1819808

S£7002°S6

i EgTIes

. 00'000'Z9L:

- Suge}

L1 b0 VES - PUNZ UE VES

g > 1Z02/92/20 9698t 64°63¢€ |B:R=13-g BLPBRFOL 00°000°Z1 0ZOZ0L0 ARSI L Mg BZHSYZL
g > 0202/L0/20 Q5°ZEr £6'8E9'Y LOLEL'ET 00°006'5T ¥1OZ/90/20 ey xcuﬁ.acccm BZL-G¥ZL
e > §lL0gfee/a 0T8le LT eSS L LOEOY'LL CO0A0'GL ELOE/EZN0 dioD Jeqeu| Med BLLGYIL
g > LZOZBLZO L1086 $6'088 eseLL'e Lzl 000008 LL0ziEww0 O sBupuer o eglL-G¥ZlL
ge> 1202/¥0/e0 00°00C 68151 SrSLE'L S4VYErE 00°000' 0Z0Z/LE/E0 DT oPMG e 1y WrsveL
g > STogy S0y 120Z/8LZ0 ST0TY L SL8'e 92°2ER's PLLOVSL 60'000°s2 8102/L1/50 RIeID uospnK BYZGYeL
Y
e LZ0ZGHZ0 ZEvLly 08808’ TEYBS'EL gL'sop'LL 00'Q00'se L1L0Z/ELI60 SUIPF-UOSPNH BeZsvel
- |
i L202r2Ee0 96'e8L eb'aie 80°849°) 26712E0L 00°000°CH 020e/LE/ET SUBLy-LeSpiH Lty AR
ge> GLOZMCLBO PLEEE 0B'SL¥2 vrariral 00°005'08 S10ZI0EILD DU ‘uesiAa BG0-5¥ZL
0e > [ATAL AV IR =A 4 A 241754 3o P4 6U1ZTF Lpsloicyas LL0Z/BOMBO  "saleg Je] Sumolg ELZ-GvLL
86°7SE L8985 00°000'% 00°000's AL0Z/3E/01 Anesg uasig v ETCSEL

0Z202/52/60

 yunowy

7 3soueql

1BCIIUL -

I5eg Sheq’

U o AN Y8 SPOLD == -

Aane L ang e

T Ll e 15997 tmmm

o S FATRINUEING |

(suonoesuel [y)

aaunog Buipung Ag

LZ0Z/L1/ED - §102/10/10 POMSd 93 404 spund IV Joj Joday souejeq el

iNd 02 20 L.20g/11/€0




M
g > jeleRualizera 00700052 L20Z2LZ0 Amiseay uospnH B0L-04TH

8 70 e 2R CEREE LT 7 LY LAT LT O0008'EET S Eb L0 T WES - PUNd UBST vES

g > LSOBO/EY SF VLT L6'8L0T L0ETE'T) 0300051 0202/11/80 ZH LB oA BLG-0GZE
0g > LZ0Z/6L/20 1E°02% 1L80L'T 5Z°16E°LE 00°008'eE 0Z0Z/52/60  Z# Bulpay g nogjeL 2090923
0g > \eRRZE0 0V'ELE ZLTER' L 82291°¢) 0000051 0202/51/80  JT1 'S3IOAL JSQWOY £5-0924
ge > LZ0ZP0Ee 00°SLT L6 ¥0E 80°0Z9°) LE'BLEEL Q000G QZOTIELILQ unbatuep pey rE08TL
ae > F20Z6LE0 0O'YE 86765 TO'SZLT 86'7.8ZE Q0 0o0'sE CZ0Z/EO/B0  TBUIPIOH D Auenp £6-0821
.
g > L20Z/6L20 00'9SE £8°08€ A1 EFTELEL O000D'0Z 0202/L1/B0 SPURS pAINGY 950821
0g > 1202/P0/IE0 SPPLT 00'86e vIZOE og'AZe'zl  Q0O0Q'S)H 0Z0Z/P0/90  SHAISIUZ 2S00 050821
G > LZOTHHED 00'G0Y BE'LZE CIBLLE beiogera A QUU000'yL QZOZ/ELL0 T olpRlg gy 1Y egs-0821
oe> VZ0T/ZERZ0 00'8LE <90se BE6YE L Z90SL'EE 00°000'S 1 UToT/9e/en Ul ASWE TE08TL
ge> LE0T/6LZ0 95™vie 86°%ET TELEL L 2i'Ze8'EL 00°000's1E 0Z0Z/SLE0  SIRuessT AusazaH 8%-08Z1
dnuesn
oe= 12025120 S6°TEE 25'86¢ £2'986" L LLEEL'ER 00'BOE'SE 0202/51160 apeinunos eRe-09Z1

ge> LE0Z/6L/20 00'sie 0e'08g oLetl'E 0E'SS3'EL 00°008"SL 0Z0ZT/LLIGT sjeay), dnasing LE0EZ)

T

. 0 araenvs  BrEROUE . C T TILBSE T SUSOSLOL | I0UELIZE 119047 ¥@S - Pun ueo s
oe> 1202/81/20 L¥L1S L96pl'e £9'986'2 1E180'22 00°000°0E BLOZ/LLIPD  TTED AldEg SEIM BLE-0SC1
o

0g > A AN A A FA oLLil'e Pig-rA LS YL 0O'00'ST LOZ/8Z/30 ‘loog Bupspuem BQZ-NgeL

0g > 0ZoTT/LE dTast'gl 29'Lsl'e 00T005'ze 00°005'22 BLOZ/GL/P0  ~saIdxg Wil uma BZe-09Ti

oe> 1Z02Z/8L20 £Z'9TY awzery  L5TP0TL  SOUSSLL  00O00'ST  LL0ZELOL TUSasudmuZ GHAS  eel-UsT

e 0202/80/10 91'75T g 00°008'Y QLOZIELZL ISAulaMAWUARS EGZ0STH

0 > 0Z02/0E/F0 €6'198'2 ZeL0e [RWFrA 190426 8102/380/20 B aapndug BGL-0GZ1

08 = LE0ZIBLIZD 26T BZFOL'E Gr'aze‘s PSELE AL 00°000'52 BLOZIGLZD DV 'SPOeD BUUIN 0g-0821

g > 0Z0Z/6L/0L 8P'SSE'9 SLTLIT Y 00°000'Z1 0000021 810Z/LZ/LE NG wiley E8Z-06Z1

og > |Z0Z/6HZ0 Z9ELS L0E0E €ET6LL 19°408'TT 00"000'08 GL0Z//0/90 129 umciuBwiRg E/E-Q5Z1

> 10T/ O0SLE 501 SEESHL  SOG'St  OD'OC0'SE  0Z02/2T0  CINSAemBien  ege-0szh

g > 120264720 9TESE 0SIOVT  LEVRS0L SYSIZT  OU00U'SL  LOZIRO sewzeg ueyes  BOL-0SEL

08 > 1 202/61/20 B¥'S8Z 6Z°010T 66°8P8'L 171802 00°000'Sk 2H0TIEEHD SO eplyeg 281-05¢1

08> LZOE/BLED 1E19T 0974002 0FZLEL 115289 0oase'es 2L0THE/S0 SHOMPOOAA BINTY ®61-0521

0E > L20Z/BL20 ET'BEE 98 ZE808'F B9 LED'EL 000n0 4L BLOZ/ETISD TP 'eTIMRS Hagy 296-05T1

pe> 020212190 00TOTLL  STES9 90°005'24 0000S'7E  BLOTBOSD  DTISCoRlSmXENQY  RaE-0STL

og > VZOZIBLED LIPS LHBLE' PE'S0L'E 99'662°9T 007000'08 020Z/50/20 DTIEET 4L B66-0521
e e e e e T L e T e e e e L T aoumeg | qumeg | e

Ised sReq | ISed regor | 4Xig L +3AI Y04 FZENHL FOML [ 3N AN e | Juneuny s yseaeut L ledisue i pedioup UROT L ARG ISQID ) [ AAMONIOg L e
R s T o o 1589 SPOMOY == T i mna S 15916 ame . | amm S SARRINWNG mwa | B S . .
(suonoesueu [Iy)
G 10+ afed 20in0g Buipund Ag Wd 02 20 LZ0Z/LLIE0

L20Z/LL/E0 - §1L0Z/L0/L0 Poliad 3y} Jo} spund fiy 1o} Lodey soueled ey



sgozy

- rozy

S L A0e e OLBSYE6T T LSBTLEEL L 08 BIS L SRRk p0E

7 sueo|gLE

18303 Hodsy

YIEEE LIS

L TUTEETL

”mp.mo._.mm pund uzon <m.w.

T 0zy

R STOZy

S OZeeg Lk

CpYeBLBIL ¢ L9CLLBIS:

“Y ooroso'os U

00'000'08

' sugol

. 2180+ 4T YES < PUnd UeQT vas

et

00'000°5%

Borooose

LEOg/LLI0

om
UOSPNH JaTAM

ELQLEE

HUN0L

- 43N

L somy

 asaa s | pdipulsd

7 aouereg
lediaund .

1+ penoury -

DIl

| ewgesas:

L Jemelseg

5 U bl

15ed shea’

-35ed I290L

+XIS -

S +ENd

==z AN I8 SPOLIY ==

S eaNg

T aner | Ceea ) unowy

" i SYU ISR mm

== S FARBIWND === |

¢ 4o g abed

(suonoesues jy)

ao.inog Buipund Ag
1202/L1/S0 - S10Z/L0/L0 pouad 8y} 1o} spund [y Joj Hoday soueleq [eUL

nd 0T €0 1202/L LiE0




	CEDC A&F meeting packet 3 24 2021
	CEDC FS 3.17.2021
	CEDC RC Letter Draft
	march 2021 Portfolio Report



